
AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

October 13, 2020 
 

CALENDAR 
 

Oct 13 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 13 
immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 13 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 15 8:00 a.m. Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 15 10:00 a.m. Special Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 27 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Oct 27 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. THE ELKHART PROMISE 
 

C. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 
 

D. CONSENT ITEMS: 
Minutes – September 22, 2020 – Public Work Session 

Minutes – September 22, 2020 – Regular Board Meeting 
Claims 
Gift Acceptance 

Fundraisers 
Extra Curricular Purchase Requests 
Grants 

Conference Leave Request 
Personnel Report 

 

E. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS – SCHOOL IMPROVEMENT PLANNING PROCESS 

Riverview Elementary School 
Feeser Elementary School 
Beck Elementary School 

West Side Middle School 
 

F. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Bus Driver and Helper Retention Payment Memorandum – The 
administration request Board authorization of the Bus Driver and Helper 

Retention Payment Memorandum. 
 
 



BOARD AGENDA October 13, 2020 
 
 

2 
   

 Public Hearing on the 2021 Budget, 2021 Capital Projects Plan and 2021 
School Bus Replacement Plan 

 
 Textbook Rental Fees – The Business Office recommends Board approval of 

textbook rental fees for the 2020-2021 school year. 

 
 Bristol Public Library Board Appointment 

 

 School Technology Advance Account Petition - The Business Office seeks 
confirmation of the submission of a School Technology Advancement Account 
Petition. 

 
G. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 

 

 From Audience 
 

 From Superintendent and Staff 
 

 From Board 
 

H. ADJOURNMENT 
 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 

September 22, 2020 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

5:30 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Kellie L. Mullins Babette S. Boling 

Present: Carolyn R. Morris Susan C. Daiber 

 Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. Douglas K. Weaver 

   
   

ECS Staff Tony England Brad Sheppard 

Present: Tony Gianesi Steve Thalheimer 
 Mindy Higginson Doug Thorne 
 Kevin Scott Cheryl Waggoner 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board was presented the balance of the 2021 budget draft review by 
Kevin Scott, Chief Financial Officer.  The Board also discussed the Board 
vacancy due to a change of residency, and reviewed details of the hybrid 

plan prior to presentation at the regular meeting. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:20 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Kellie L. Mullins, President 
 
 
____________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Vice President 
 
 
____________________________ 
Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Secretary 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Babette S. Boling, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 
Signatures 

 



MINUTES 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

September 22, 2020 
 

J.C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Road, Elkhart – at 

7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Kellie L. Mullins Babette S. Boling 
Present: Carolyn R. Morris Susan C. Daiber 

 Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr. Douglas K. Weaver 
   
   

 

Roll Call 

President Kellie Mullins called the regular meeting of the Board of School 
Trustees to order. 
 

Call to 
Order 

Board Secretary, Rocky Enfield, recited the Elkhart Promise. 
 

The Elkhart 
Promise 

Mrs. Mullins discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following consent items: 
 

Consent Items 

Minutes – September 8, 2020 – Public Work Session 

Minutes – September 8, 2020 – Regular Board Meeting 
 

Minutes 

Payment of claims totaling $4,602,347.70 as shown on the 

September 22, 2020, claims listing.  (Codified File 2021-48) 
 

Payment of 

Claims 

The following donations made to Elkhart Community Schools 

(ECS): Firefighting equipment, including hose shutoffs, tips, 
gauges, valves, adapters (owner value of $11,954.50) from 
Elkhart Brass to the EACC for the Firefighting class; and donations 

of $500 and $1,000 from the Sarah Crane Foundation to the 
Elkhart High School boys’ track team. 
 

Gift Acceptance 

Proposed school fundraisers in accordance with Board policy.  
(Codified File 2021-49) 
 

Fundraisers 

Conference leave requests in accordance with Board policy for 
staff members as recommended by the administration on the 
September 22, 2020 listings. (Codified File 2021-50) 

 

Conference 
Leave Requests  

  



2 
 

 
 

 
Employment of the following eight (8) certified staff members for 
the 2020-2021 school year, effective on dates indicated:   

Caddabra Bernard-Brown - psychologist at ESC, 9/16/20 
Rachel Cason - art at Daly, 9/14/20 
Jane Farrand - special education at Bristol, 9/21/20 

Meaghen Farwig - business technology at West Side, 9/28/20 
Carol Gress-Battersby - diagnostician at ESC, 9/21/20 
Samantha Hughey - grade 6 at Pinewood, 9/21/20 

W. Douglas Hunnings - elementary science at ESC, 9/9/20 
Michael Pawlak - social studies at EHS West, 9/14/20 
 

Resignation of certified staff member, Jami Young, homebound at 
ESC, effective 6/3/20. 

 

Retirement of certified staff member, John Sadowey, social 
studies at SWW, effective 2/3/21, with 28 years of service. 
 

Employment of classified employee, Sandra Geers, custodian at 
Pierre Moran, effective 9/21/20. 

 
Resignation of the following four (4) classified employees, 
effective on dates indicated:  

Lauren Ford - paraprofessional at Hawthorne, 9/15/20 
Kathleen Loy - registered nurse at Woodland, 12/18/20 
Donna Moore - bus driver at Transportation, 9/14/20 

Jodee Shaw - food service at EHS East, 9/4/20 
 

Retirement of the following two (2) classified employees, effective 

on dates indicated with years of service in parenthesis: 
Judy Phelps - bus driver at Transportation, 9/8/20 (13) 
Connie Schneider - food service at EHS East, 9/2/20 (16) 

 
Reassignment of classified employee, Jane Farrand, 
paraprofessional at Bristol, to certified position. 

 
Revision of leave for classified employee, Cheyenne Magyar, bus 
driver at Transportation, beginning 9/8/20 and ending 1/1/21. 

 
Change to leave for classified employee, Sharmonique McDaniel, 
secretary at West Side, beginning 8/13/20 and ending 9/18/20. 

 
Termination of the following three (3) classified employees 
effective 9/22/20 under Board Policy 3139.01S: 

Jessica Burnham - food service at Osolo 
Cynthia Johansen, food service at Feeser 
Lisa Tyson, food service at EHS West/Hawthorne 

 

Personnel 
Report 

 
Certified 
Employment 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Certified 
Resignation 
 

Certified 
Retirement 
 

Classified 
Employment 

 
Classified 
Resignations 

 
 
 

 
 
Classified 

Retirements 
 
 

 
Reassignment 
 

 
Revision of 
Leave 

 
Change to 
Leave 

 
Classified 
Terminations 

 



3 
 

Dr. Thalheimer presented COVID statistics.  By a vote of 5 to 1 (Boling 
voted nay), the Board amended the motion to approve the Re-Entry 

Plan to include a 45-day review.  By unanimous action, the Board 
approved the amended motion. 
 

Review of  
Re-Entry Plan 

By unanimous action, the Board approved a Memorandum of 
Understanding between Elkhart Community Schools and the Elkhart 
Teachers Association regarding High Elementary School Virtual Student 

Loads. (Codified File 2021-51) 
 

Memorandum of 
Understanding 
 

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a Resolution authorizing and 

directing school districts receiving federal financial assistance to 
effectuate Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended.  
(Codified File 2021-52) 

 

Resolution 

 

By unanimous action, the Board authorized Kevin Scott, chief financial 
officer, to advertise the required documents related to the 2021 Budget, 

Capital Projects Fund and Bus Replacement Plans and to hold a public 
hearing on October 13, 2020. 
 

Permission to 
Advertise 

 

The Board received a financial report from Mr. Scott for the period 
January 1 – August 31, 2020.  The Board found the report to be in 

order.   
 

Financial Report 
 

Mr. Scott provided the current insurance update reporting August claims 

were high, but remains below overall for the year. 

Monthly 

Insurance 
Update 
 

Dr. Thalheimer congratulated the high school football team’s victory on 
Friday evening, breaking a 35-year draught with Penn High School. 
  

From the 
Superintendent 
 

Dr. Thalheimer announced over the next 5 regular Board meetings, 
individual schools will be reporting on their School Improvement Plans.  
Schools presenting at the October 13th meeting will be Riverview, 

Feeser, Beck and West Side. 
 

From the 
Superintendent 

Dr. Thalheimer again stated his appreciation for all contributing to the 9-

page summary report of the Re-Entry Plan, including Human Resources, 
Student Services, Lorrie Bjornstad, and the leadership team. 
 

From the 

Superintendent 

  



4 
 

Board President, Kellie Mullins, announced the vacancy of the at-large 
Board seat previously held by Rodney Dale, due to his recent move 

outside of the district.  Mrs. Mullins noted letters of interest and resumes 
will be accepted through 4:00 p.m. October 5th and should be sent to 
the Board administrative assistant Susan Ott at sott@elkhart.k12.in.us. 

or dropped off at the JC Rice Education Services Center, 2720 California 
Road, Elkhart. Interested applicants need to be 21 years of age, live 
within the boundaries of the school corporation for at least one year 

prior to the appointment, and currently not be employed by the school 
district or willing to resign employment with the district upon 
appointment if currently employed by Elkhart Community Schools.  

Candidate interviews will take place on October 13th during the work 
session.  Then Board members will appoint a candidate to fill the 
vacancy at the regular Board meeting. The newly appointed Board 

member will take his or her seat at the October 27th Board meeting. 
 

From the Board 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:55 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 

  Kellie L. Mullins, President 
 
 

  ____________________________________ 
  Carolyn R. Morris, Vice President 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Roscoe L. Enfield, Jr., Secretary 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Babette S. Boling, Member 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Susan C. Daiber, Member 
 

 
  ____________________________________ 
  Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

Signatures 

 



ELKHART HIGH SCHOOL WEST
2608 CALIFORNIA ROAD® ELKHART, IN 46514
PHONE: 574-262-5600

FOIIIkkkte

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
J.C, RICE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES CENTER

2720 CALIFORNIA ROAD+ ELKHART, IN 46514

PHONE: 574-262-5500

 

DATE: September30, 2020

TO: Dr. Steve Thalheimer

Board of School Trustees

FROM: Brian Buckley

Elkhart High School Athletic Department

RE: Donation Approval

A donation in the amount of $11,500 has been given to the Elkhart High School

Athletic Department. This donation was sent by the Elkhart Education Foundation

to support the purchaseof Elkhart High School athletic uniforms.

| am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to acceptthis

donation and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciationis

sent to:

Elkhart Education Foundation

2746 Old US 20 W

Suite B

Elkhart, IN 46514

Sincerely,

Kw

Brian Buckley

Director of Athletics

Elkhart High School



ELKHART HIGH SCHOOL WEST
2608 CALIFORNIA ROAD» ELKHART, IN 46514
PHONE: 574-262-5600

HORNOHAOOOOOA A AA A A te

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
J.C. RICE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES CENTER

2720 CALIFORNIA ROAD * ELKHART, IN 46514

PHONE: 574-262-5500

 

DATE: September 30, 2020

TO: Dr. Steve Thalheimer

Board of School Trustees

FROM: Brian Buckley

Elkhart High School Athletic Department

RE: Donation Approval

A donation in the amount of $500.00 has beengiven to the Elkhart High School
wrestling program from First State Bank. This donation wassent to support the
Elkhart High School Wrestling Program.

| am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to acceptthis
donation and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciationis
sent to:

First State Bank

P.O. Box 69

Middlebury, Indiana 46540-0069

Sincerely,

A.
Brian Buckley

Director of Athletics

Elkhart High School



ELKHART HIGH SCHOOL WEST
2608 CALIFORNIA ROAD* ELKHART, IN 46514
PHONE:574-262-5600

FO IOI IOOOO IO AA AA A ok oe

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
J.C, RICE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES CENTER
2720 CALIFORNIA ROAD * ELKHART, IN 46514
PHONE: 574-262-5500

 

DATE: September 30, 2020

TO: Dr. Steve Thalheimer

Board of School Trustees

FROM: Brian Buckley

Elkhart High School Athletic Department

RE: Donation Approval

A donation in the amount of $500.00 has been given to the Elkhart High School
wrestling program from Genesis Products, LLC. This donation was sent to support
the Elkhart High School Wrestling Program.

| am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to acceptthis
donation and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is
sent to:

Genesis Products LLC

P.O. Box 2117

Elkhart, Indiana 46515

Sincerely,
n

Fu
Brian Buckley

Director of Athletics

Elkhart High School



ELKHART HIGH SCHOOL WEST
2608 CALIFORNIA ROAD» ELKHART, IN 46514

PHONE: 574-262-5600

HORNO ROA A A A OA A AA A A AA A A

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
J.C. RICE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES CENTER

2720 CALIFORNIA ROAD + ELKHART, IN 46514
PHONE: 574-262-5500

 

DATE: September30, 2020

TO: Dr. Steve Thalheimer

Board of School Trustees

FROM: Brian Buckley

Elkhart High School Athletic Department

RE: Donation Approval

A donation in the amountof $500.00 has been given to the Elkhart High School
wrestling program from Hoosier Crane Service Company. This donation was sent

to support the Elkhart High School Wrestling Program.

| am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to acceptthis

donation and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgementand appreciationis

sent to:

Hoosier Crane Service Company
3500 Charlotte Avenue
Elkhart, IN 46517

Sincerely,

Brian Buckley

Director of Athletics

Elkhart High School



ELKHART HIGH SCHOOL WEST
2608 CALIFORNIA ROAD» ELKHART, IN 46514
PHONE: 574-262-5600

HORROR OOOOOO ROA A A A AA

ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS
J.C. RICE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES CENTER

2720 CALIFORNIA ROAD » ELKHART, IN 46514

PHONE: 574-262-5500

 

DATE: September 30, 2020

TO: Dr. Steve Thalheimer

Board of School Trustees

FROM: Brian Buckley

Elkhart High School Athletic Department

RE: Donation Approval

A donation in the amount of $500.00 has been givento the Elkhart High School
wrestling program from Heng’s Industries USA, LLC. This donation wassent to
support the Elkhart High School Wrestling Program.

| am requesting approval from the Board of School Trusteesto acceptthis
donation and that an appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciationis

sent to:

Heng’s Industries USA, LLC

3500 Lexington Park Dr

Elkhart, IN 46514

Sincerely,

Ha—
Brian Buckley

Director of Athletics

Elkhart High School







October 6, 2020, Meeting of Board of School Trustees

School/Organiz
ation Fundraising Activity Description/Purpose

Date(s) of 
Activity

Date 
Submitted Sponsor(s)

Mary Feeser We would like to partner with Bruno's Pizza 
to sell pre-made and packaged pizzas, 
cheeses and meatballs. Proceeds from this 
fundraiser will be used for after school 
activities, All Pro Dad's and Mom's Breakfast, 
etc.

10/12/2020 - 
10/23/2021

10/1/2020 Micah Lambert, Lisa Iavagnilio and 
Stephanie Robbins

West Side 
Middle School - 
Cheerleading

GoFundMe- Online donations to help cover 
the cost of cheer uniforms and equipment. 

10/19/2020 - 
11/16/2020

7/14/2020 Paige Corbalis

Elkhart High - 
Boys Basketball

Online crowdsourcing donations via a 
platform called FanAngel. Proceeds will be 
used for shirts, travel gear, training 
equipment and team activities. 

11/12/2020 - 
1/31/2020

9/28/2020 Kyle Sears

Bristol 
Elementary - 
School PRIDE

Texas Roadhouse will provide a share link to 
sell gift cards online. Proceeds from this will 
go towards School PRIDE activities. 

10/19/2020 - 
11/6/2020

9/24/2020 Lori Petersheim

West Side 
Middle School - 
Alt Ed.

Online donations to Donors Choose allows 
the donor to put money towards a wireless 
printer that will help accommodate student 
needs. 

9/22/2020 - 
12/31/2020

9/21/2020 Erin Peterson

Elkhart High 
East - Orchestra

Popcorn, candy, cheese, sausage and gift 
items will be sold to help cover the costs of 
orchestra expenses such as music, strings, 
tuners, uniforms, cleanings and repairs.

11/2/2020 - 
1/20/2021

10/7/2020 Kyle Weirch

Please note the following fundraisers are 
presented for confirmation only.

Elkhart High 
School East - 
Key Club

Flavor Freeze gift cards will be sold and 
money raised will be used for club expenses 
and conventions.

9/11/2020 - 
10/1/2020

9/1/2020 Krista Riblet













What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the 

name of the 

granting 

agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

What is the 

amount

applied for?

How will the grant funds be used 

and who will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be 

used to support the district vision, focus, and 

goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

What is the 

grant submission 

deadline?

Workforce 

Ready Grant

Department of 

Workforce 

Development

ECS Community 

Education

Brandon Eakins 

and Darcey 

Mitschelen

$5,000 per 

individual for 

training

To upskill our custodial and 

building services staff members.

Community Education will collaborate with 

building services to create an introductory 

facility maintenance program for staff members 

that want to add additional skills and prepare 

themselves for advancement.

Training costs associated with materials 

and instruction.

10/17/2020

Bullying 

Prevention/Move 

2 Stand

United Way of 

Elkhart County

Student Services Todd Kelly $18,000 Todd Kelly will oversee the 

management of the grant funds. 

Funds will be used to bring 

facilitators from the national 

headquarters of Move 2 Stand 

from Nashville, TN to Elkhart to 

provide training in bullying 

prevention to our secondary 

students and to support the 

bullying prevention clubs in each 

secondary school.

In his "Healthy Schools/Healthy Elkhart" 

initiative, our Superintendent presented the 

following priority for ECS:

Assess and implement practices to promote 

individual and institutional health 

(i.e., restorative justice, trauma-informed 

practices, mindfulness, social & 

emotional wellness) in order to nurture positive 

relationships and repair harm 

for any person.

As we move forward in meeting this priority, 

Bullying Prevention becomes extremely 

important. We will provide students 

opportunities to learn and practice many social 

/emotional skills that will help them in 

developing positive relationships and repairing 

(and avoiding) harm.

Grant funds make the Summit Days possible. 

These are high impact days of experiential 

learning that result in planning sessions that 

assist students in forming plans as to how they 

will support bullying prevention in their 

individual schools.

Stipends/Subs (Summit Days and training) 

.......................... $3,000

Contracted Services (Nashville 

Move2Stand team) ........... $8,000

Travel/Mileage. ................. $1,000

Supplies (T shirts, food, club 

supplies).......................... $6,000

TOTAL............................. $18,000

10/28/2020

Generation On 

(Learning to 

Give)

Generation On Mary L. Daly Carolyn 

Lesperance

$250 Grant funds will be utilized to 

purchase supplies for local 

community service projects such 

as raking leaves, making 

decorations for nursing homes, 

and making blankets to donate to 

shelters. 

This may change if students have 

other ideas about how they might 

give back or meet a need. It will be 

overseen by Carolyn Lesperance, 

Assistant Principal.

Before completing projects students will be 

made aware of needs within our community 

and will decide how to meet those needs. One 

goal of the district is to form school/community 

partnerships and to help students become 

contributing members of society.

fleece $10/blanket material x 10= $100 

(Joann Fabrics)

Rakes $10/each x 5 = $50 (Lowes)

Small, plain wooden signs $2-3/each = 80

Cricut removable vinyl- 1 package= $10

Acrylic paint $.50/ bottle x 20= $10

This may change if students have other 

ideas about how they night give back or 

meet a need. 

11/1/2020

Page 1 of 2 10/13/20 Board Meeting



What is the 

title of the 

grant?

What is the 

name of the 

granting 

agency/

entity?

Please list 

school/entity 

applying.

Individual/

contact applying 

for the grant?

What is the 

amount

applied for?

How will the grant funds be used 

and who will oversee the 

management of the grant?

Please explain how the grant funds will be 

used to support the district vision, focus, and 

goals. 

Please outline the grant budget for 

the funds requested.

What is the 

grant submission 

deadline?

Indiana Literacy 

Early 

Intervention 

Grant

Indiana 

Department of 

Education

Elkhart Community 

Schools

Tara White $34,498.17 Funds will be overseen and 

managed by Tara White, Director 

of Literacy, and will be used for the 

continued professional 

development and acquisition of 

teacher resources to support our 

literacy initiatives through our work 

with Smekens Education.

We will continue to pursue an intense 

professional development plan with our 

teachers that aligns with our district focus and 

goals to strengthen Tier 1 instruction and the 

implementation and evaluation of evidence-

based, best practice literacy strategies in their 

classrooms. This professional development will 

target teacher skills in implementing the 90-

minute reading block, with emphasis on small-

group guided reading, so that the students will 

make substantial yearly gains based on 

beginning and ending assessments on grade 

level benchmarks.

The IDOE released the allocations for the 

grant for each district on 9/16/20, which then 

allowed for the grant application to begin.  Due 

to the short window of time from receiving the 

allocation amount on 9/16/20 to the 9/17/20 

deadline for submitting information for the 

9/22/20 school board meeting agenda, I was 

not able to finish and finalize the application.  

The deadline for the grant submission to the 

IDOE was 10/7/20, so I am respectfully 

submitting it for approval at the next available 

meeting of the Board of School Trustees on 

10/13/20.

Technical/Contracted Services with 

Smekens Education - $20,698.90; Supplies 

and Resources - $13,799.27.

10/7/2020

Teacher Leader 

Boot Camp

IDOE Pinewood 

Elementary

Jason Rybinski $4,000 Funds will be used to reimburse 

the district for the participant's 

associated costs. Brad Sheppard 

will oversee the management of 

the grant.

The grant funding will provide teachers the 

skills and strategies needed to develop their 

personal leadership capacity, ability to 

positively affect their professional learning 

communities (PLCs), and help other teachers 

bridge the gap between research and practice.

The paperwork from the IDOE did not indicate 

this was a grant, it was discovered when the 

final report was received.

$1000 for hotel, mileage and substitute cost

$3000 for stipend

8/16/2019

Page 2 of 2 10/13/20 Board Meeting





 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

 

 

To:   Dr. Steven Thalheimer 

From:  Ms. Cheryl Waggoner 

Date:  October 13, 2020 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

 

a. Agreement – We recommend the approval of two agreements regarding unpaid time. 

 

 

b. Maternity Leave – We recommend a maternity leave for the following employees: 

 

Maegan Banicki   Elkhart West/Special Education 

Begin:  11/4/20    End:  11/10/20 

 

Lyndel Borener   Woodland/Music 

Begin:  11/6/20    End:  12/3/20 

 

 

c. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

 

Shane Betzer    Hawthorne/Intervention 

Began:  9/10/12    Resign:  10/8/20 

 

Kathryn Bromen   ESC/Technology Integrator 

Began:  8/4/15    Resign:  10/21/20 

 

 

 
CLASSIFIED 

 

a. New Hires – We recommend regular employment of the following classified employees: 

 

Rebecca Allen    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Alexis Bails    Feeser/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Shena Boone    Elkhart East/Food Service 

Began: 8/12/20    PE: 10/6/20  

 



 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Cordelia Brown   Hawthorne/Food Service 

Began: 8/10/20    PE: 10/5/20 

 

Allene Cart    Elkhart West/Food Service 

Began: 8/12/20    PE: 10/6/20 

 

David Chaney    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Geoffrey DiPiro   PACE/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Christina English   Cleveland/Food Service 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Carrie Faught    North Side/Food Service 

Began: 8/12/20    PE: 10/5/20 

 

Christopher Flanagan   Building Services/Electrician 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Melissa Flory    Elkhart East/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/18/20    PE: 10/13/20 

 

Ashley Fogarty    Pierre Moran/Technical Assistant 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Christina Fogelsanger   North Side/Food Service 

Began: 8/10/20    PE: 10/5/20 

 

Brandin Fontes   Pierre Moran/Registered Nurse 

Began: 8/11/20    PE: 10/5/20 

 

Kylie Giger    Elkhart West/Campus Security 

Began: 8/11/20    PE: 10/5/20 

 

Paula Gluck    Elkhart West/Food Service 

Began: 8/10/20    PE: 10/5/20 

 

Carlos Harris    Beardsley/Permanent Substitute  

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Alan Kist    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 



 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Casey Lott    Beardsley/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/11/20    PE: 10/5/20 

 

Naily Luzardo Soto   Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/12/20    PE: 10/6/20 

 

Letha Marshall   Eastwood/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Korena Massey   Roosevelt/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/11/20    PE: 10/5/20 

 

Michelle Masten   Riverview/Registered Nurse 

Began: 8/11/20    PE: 10/5/20 

 

Gregory McMillan   Cleveland/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/18/20    PE: 10/13/20 

 

Raegan Minear   Pierre Moran/Social Worker 

Began: 8/10/20    PE: 10/5/20 

 

Breanna Miranda   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Brooke Murray   Beardsley/Social Worker 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20   

 

Joanna Pizana    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Brian Prugh    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Stephanie Slagel   Woodland/Food Service 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Nicholas Srmek   PACE/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Sanara Warren   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 

Joan Wells    Elkhart West/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20 

 



 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

James Wooten    Feeser/Paraprofessional 

Began: 8/17/20    PE: 10/12/20   

  

 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following classified employees: 

 

Tina Lewis    North Side~Roosevelt/Food Service 

Began: 12/13/06   Resign: 6/3/20 

 

Douglas May    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 1/6/20    Resign: 6/3/20 

 

Joel Mbugua    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began: 8/6/15    Resign: 9/30/20 

 

Randolph Roby   Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began: 8/28/19    Resign: 6/3/20 

 

Belinda Siler    Elkhart West/Custodian 

Began: 1/25/16    Resign: 9/22/20 

           

a. Unpaid Leave Request - We recommend an extension to unpaid leave for the following employees: 

 

Kimberly Bishop   North Side/ Paraprofessional 

Begin: 9/18/20    End: 10/12/20 

 

Irenna Coleman   Elkhart West/Food Service 

Begin: 10/2/20    End: 10/9/20 

 

Robert Gray    Pierre Moran/Food Service 

Begin: 9/30/20    End: 10/20/20 

 

Tonci Haynes    Elkhart East/Food Service 

Begin: 9/22/20    End: 10/9/20 

 

Emily Lewandowski   Monger/Social Worker 

Begin: 8/10/20    End: 6/4/21 

 

Christina Miller   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Begin: 10/1/20    End: 10/14/20 

 

Retha Miller    Transportation/Bus Driver 

Begin: 10/1/20    End: 1/14/21 

 



 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

Brenda White    Woodland/Food Service 

Begin: 9/28/20    End: 11/6/20 

 

b. Termination -  We report the termination of the following classified employees: 

 

Kelly Davis    Roosevelt/Paraprofessional 

Began:  8/30/16    End: 10/13/20 

     Policy:  3139.01 

 

Letitia DeNeal    Transportation/Bus Helper 

Began:  8/28/17    End: 10/13/20 

     Policy:  3139.01 

 

Yvonne Gefri    North Side/Food Service 

Began:  8/15/14    End: 10/13/20 

     Policy:  3139.01 

 

Marsha Hall                                        Transportation/Bus Helper 
Began: 8/16/07                                        End: 9/8/20 
                                                                  Policy: 3122.01 ACS 
 

Samantha Negrete Gonzalez  Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began:  2/13/18    End: 10/13/20   

     Policy:  3139.01 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 To:  Superintendent of Schools 

  Board of School Trustees 

  

From:  W. Douglas Thorne 

  Kevin Scott 

  Tony Gianesi 

  Jon Chevalier 

 

Date:  October 9, 2020 

 

     Re: Bus Driver and Helper Retention payments 

The Administration is seeking authorization to continue paying a retention payment to our contracted 

bus drivers as well as the authority to expand this program to include bus helpers.  This program has 

been beneficial in the corporation’s efforts to continue to provide transportation services for 

students enrolled in our schools. 

The program would operate under the following guidelines. Bus helpers and contracted bus drivers 

who have successfully completed probation will be eligible to receive a retention payment of 

$250.00 each semester provided they were employed by the school corporation as a bus helper or 

contracted driver for four or more hours each day during the immediately preceding semester, and 

continue in an active employment status as a helper or contracted driver. Retention payments will be 

made to qualified helpers and contracted drivers during the months of February for the first 

semester and September for the second semester. 

In addition to retention payments for contracted drivers, the district will pay retention payments 

totaling $250 to drivers paid by claim who regularly drive three or more days per week each 

semester. These payments, like those for contracted drivers, will be paid in February and September.  

In addition to this retention program, the administration is seeking authorization to continue its 

successful Driver Recruitment and Referral Program. This program provides the following incentives 

which serve as inducements for individuals to seek employment in our district as a bus driver: 

 A $1,000 sign on bonus for those individuals who hold a CDL with all proper endorsements. 

Drivers possessing these qualifications who successfully complete probation will receive the 

bonus in four separate quarterly payments of $250.  

 A $500 sign on bonus for individuals without a CDL who successfully complete both the 

school bus driver training program offered by Elkhart Community Schools and probation.   

 A $250 referral bonus will be paid to any Transportation Department employee who 

recommends a candidate who successfully completes both the school bus driver training 

program offered by Elkhart Community Schools and probation. 



Page 2 of 2 

In order for a previously employed bus driver, who has been rehired as a bus driver, to receive the 

sign on bonus or for an employee to receive the referral bonus, the bus driver must have a break in 

employment of three (3) years or more. 

Individuals in training to be a bus driver and qualify for a Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) will be 

paid a rate of $13.25 per hour. Once the driver candidate is in possession of a CDL, the candidate 

will be paid the bus driver’s probationary rate for attendance at the two (2) day training required by 

the State of Indiana. 

This program is supported by funding received as a result of the referendum approved by the voters 

in 2014. 

WDT/dls 

Cc: Bus Drivers 

 Bus Helpers 

 

 






































































	Agenda - October 13, 2020
	Minutes - Public Work Session September 22 2020
	Minutes - Regular Meeting  - September 22 2020
	Gift Acceptance - EHS
	Gift Acceptance - EHS.pdf
	FSB Donation Request
	GP Donation Approval Request
	HCSC Donation Approval Request
	HIUSA Donation Approval Request

	Gift Acceptance - Student Services
	Fundraisers
	Extra Curricular Purchase Requests
	Grants
	Conference Leave Request
	Personnel Report
	Bus Helper and Driver Retention Payment Memo
	Textbook Rental Fees 2020-2021
	Library Appointment - Bristol
	Memo - School Technology Advance Account Petition
	Petition for School Technology Advance Account

